2001

Ira Royal L. Tribe et al. v. Salt Lake City Corporation : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action for a declaratory judgment to determine constitutionality of the Utah Neighborhood Development Act (Section 11-19-1 et seq., Utah Code Annotated 1953) and of actions taken and proposed to be taken by the defendants and respondents pursuant to such act and to determine the proper interpretation of certain provisions of such act.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The trial court, sitting without a jury, was presented documentary and testimonial evidence and entered judgment in favor of defendants and respondents holding that the Utah Neighborhood Development Act (hereinafter referred to as the "Act") is constitutional

and that certain resolutions of certain of the defendants are lawful and valid, including resolutions approving a plan for the issuance of bonds by the Salt Lake City Redevelopment Agency ("Redevelopment Agency") for the payment of which certain parking revenues and "tax increments" are pledged. (R. 99-100).

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellants seeks reversal of the judgment of the trial court and a declaration that the Act and the activities undertaken and proposed by the defendants pursuant thereto are violative of both state and federal law.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Plaintiffs Tribe own real and personal property within an area of Salt Lake City designated as the C.B.D. West Neighborhood Development Agency Project Area (the "Project Area"), that is, the blocks and streets adjacent thereto of the two block area bounded on the north by First South Street, on the east by Main Street, on the south by Third South Street and on the west by West Temple Street. (R. 90, 93, 94). Plaintiff Christensen does not own property within the Project Area but like the Plaintiffs Tribe is a qualified elector and taxpayer of Salt Lake City and each annually pays property taxes levied by Salt Lake City, Salt Lake County, Salt Lake City School District and the other taxing agencies who levy taxes on property located within Salt Lake City. (R. 91). Action was brought by the plaintiffs on their own behalf and, in Count II, on behalf of themselves

and all other members of a class which they represent consisting of qualified electors of Salt Lake City who pay property taxes.

Salt Lake City Corporation (the "City") is a city of the first class organized and operating under the laws of the State of Utah. (R. 92). The Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City (the "Redevelopment Agency") was created by the City on June 10, 1969, in accordance with authority purportedly granted by the Utah Neighborhood Development Act (Chapter 19, Title 11, Utah Code Annotated 1953, first adopted as Chapter 5, Laws of Utah 1969, First Special Session and subsequently amended in part by Chapter 5, Laws of Utah 1970, Chapter 17, Laws of Utah 1971 and Chapter 4, Laws of Utah 1974, Budget Session; said Act to be distinguished from the Utah Community Development Law, Chapter 15 of Title 11, Utah Code Annotated 1953). (R. 91, 121). As authorized by Section 11-19-3, the members of the Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake City Corporation, they being the "legislative body" of the City, were designated as the Redevelopment Agency of the City. (R. 91). The official name of the Redevelopment Agency has been established as the "Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City" (See Exhibit 6).

The Redevelopment Agency was created for the purposes specified in the Act. On February 4, 1971, Salt Lake City Corporation adopted an ordinance officially approving a redevelopment plan for the Project Area. (R. 123, see also Exhibits 3, 4, 5, 7 and 8). The plan recognized that in this Project Area there were a number

of substandard buildings and uses of land and that through rehabilitation in some cases or acquisition, clearance and rebuilding in other cases, the Project Area could be improved with the result, among other things, of the "strengthening of the tax base and economic health of the entire community" (See Exhibit 4, Section B, Subparagraph g; see also R. 93, 94).

Shortly after the adoption of the plan, in May of 1971, federal monies were obtained and in June of 1971 an executive director (M. Danny Wall) and staff were hired. (R. 120, 122). Since May of 1971 only federal monies have been used for the operation of the Redevelopment Agency and no city, county, state or other local funds have been used in any respect (R. 122, 123, see also Exhibit 9). Prior to May of 1971, no city or other local funds were appropriated to the Redevelopment Agency but city officers and employees were used in the formulation of the plan adopted in February of 1971 and in the presentation of this plan in the application of the Redevelopment Agency for federal funds. (R. 122)

Within the Project Area, the Redevelopment Agency has currently three major projects in active stages of planning and completion. The first is the construction of retail stores and an office building on the northeast corner of Second South and West Temple Streets. This project is under contract with a developer, West Temple Associates, and is currently in the stage of formulation of construction plans. (R. 134, 135) The second major project is on the southeast corner and is proposed to consist of an office building and Sheraton Hotel. The

developer, Hartnett and Shaw, is currently preparing a full scale proposal for this project which, if approved by the Redevelopment Agency, will result in a contract for the sale and development of this parcel by the developer. (See Exhibits 10 and 11 for a rendering of the proposal for this project.)

The third major project and the one with which we are principally concerned in this action is the construction and operation of a parking facility in an area between Second and Third South Streets and extending to West Temple Street, excluding the corners on West Temple, the corner at Third South and West Temple occupied by Valley Bank & Trust and the corner at Second South and West Temple on which the proposed Sheraton Hotel Project would be built. (See Exhibit 12 for the precise location of this project.) Unlike the two other projects, the parking facilities would be owned by the Redevelopment Agency and when completed charges for parking would be made by the Redevelopment Agency. (R. 143-44, 147) The parking facilities would be operated either directly by the Redevelopment Agency or under lease to a private parking operator, but in either event the net parking revenues, after payment of operating costs, would be used by the Redevelopment Agency. (R. 147) Because this is an entirely new parking facility, neither the City nor the Redevelopment Agency will have received any revenues from this facility prior to its completion and operation.

To finance the proposed parking facility, the Redevelopment Agency proposes to issue \$15,000,000 of

tax allocation and parking revenue bonds. (R. 92, 146, 147). The nature of this bond issue has been approved by both the Redevelopment Agency (Exhibit 1) and by the City (Exhibit 2). The proposed bond purports to be an obligation of the Redevelopment Agency only and not of the City or of any other taxing agency and each bond will contain a statement on the face of the bond that it is not a general obligation or liability of the City or any other taxing agency, but only a "special" obligation of the Redevelopment Agency payable solely from the net parking revenues of the parking facility and from the "tax increment." (See Section 3 on Page 7 of the proposed bond resolution, a part of Exhibit 1, R. 21 and also the form of the bond in Section 26 on pages 37-38 of such resolution, R. 50-51.

The nature of the tax "increment" or tax "allocation" requires some explanation. The formula is set forth in Section 6 of Chapter 4, Laws of Utah 1974 (11-19-74) and essentially provides that if a redevelopment plan contains a tax allocation provision, an assessed valuation base for all taxable property within the project area is established consisting of the assessed valuation of all taxable property in the project area as of the last equalized assessment roll prior to the adoption of a plan containing such a provision. Also, as explained in the testimony of M. Danny Wall, after the adoption of a plan containing such a provision and the transmission of such plan to the County Auditor and County Assessor and to each of the taxing agencies who levy taxes on property included in the project area, the taxes thereafter

levied are divided between the existing taxing agencies and the Redevelopment Agency. (R. 156) That portion of the taxes produced upon the assessed value as of the base year is allocated to the existing taxing agencies, the remainder of such taxes, representing the taxes attributable to the increase in assessed valuation from the base year, is allocated to the Redevelopment Agency. The taxes thus produced on this increased assessed valuation is the "tax increment" referred to in the bond resolution and which is proposed to be pledged for the payment of the Redevelopment Agency bonds. (R. 156).

To accomplish this, it will be necessary for the Redevelopment Agency, with the approval of Salt Lake City and after a public hearing, to amend the existing redevelopment plan to provide for the tax allocation. (See Utah Code Annotated, §§ 11-19-23, 11-19-15 et seq.-20 and 11-19-34.) The amendments so adopted will provide that the assessment base for this Project Area will be the assessed valuation for the year 1970, that being the last equalized assessment roll prior to the adoption of the original redevelopment plan in February of 1971. (See R. 96, 99) Thus, from and after the adoption of this amendment and its filing with the Salt Lake County Auditor, Salt Lake County Assessor, Utah State Tax Commission and the various taxing agencies who tax property in the Project Area (Salt Lake City, Salt Lake County, Salt Lake School District and various special districts such as the Metropolitan Water District of Salt Lake City, and the Salt Lake City Mosquito Abatement District), taxes levied on valuations thereafter assessed will be divided between the taxing agencies and the Redevelopment

Agency in accordance with the statutory formula. Thus, if the redevelopment plan is so amended and this is accomplished in 1974, commencing in 1975, the proceeds of taxes collected on all property in the Project Area will be divided between the taxing agencies and the Redevelopment Agency as described above.

Please note that there is no control attempted or authorized to alter the amount of the levies fixed by the various taxing agencies or to determine the assessed valuations of the Project Area from year to year. All that is done is to divide the proceeds of the taxes levied, whatever they may be, between the existing taxing agencies and the Redevelopment Agency in accordance with the statutory formula.

Exhibit 13 shows in terms of known figures plus projections the effect of the tax allocation for the Project Area here involved. The 1970 assessed valuation for all of the taxable property in the Project Area was slightly in excess of \$3,000,000 and this produced total property taxes by all taxing agencies of approximately \$295,000. (See also R. 158) Taking into account only the estimated increase in assessed valuation as a result of the two projects in the Project Area, the building to be constructed by West Temple Associates and the Sheraton Hotel Office Building complex, the assessed valuation for the total Project Area would increase to a figure between \$6,400,000 and \$9,800,000 and would result in increased taxes being collected in the Project Area of between \$628,000 and \$962,000. These additional taxes would be allocated to the Redevelopment

Agency and this "tax increment" would be pledged for the payment of the Redevelopment Agency bonds. Exhibit 14 shows that based both upon these projections of tax increment and similar projections of the parking revenues, there will be sufficient funds from these two sources to pay the principal and interest on the bonds and to build up and maintain the reserve fund required by the bond resolution.

ARGUMENT

In considering the specific issues of constitutionality and statutory construction raised by the following arguments, it might be of assistance to consider three basic issues, the solution of which will assist in solving the specific issues and which are common to most of these specific issues. The first of these basic issues is the legal nature of the Redevelopment Agency — is it a separate entity public corporation or other type of political subdivision having a legal nature separate from that of the City, or is it merely a department, agency or division of Salt Lake City? A second major issue is the legal nature of the proposed bonds—are they in fact bonds of Salt Lake City although issued in the name of the Redevelopment Agency? In either event, are they to be considered a "general obligation" bond within the meaning of the election requirement, debt limit and lending of credit provisions of the Utah Constitution? The third basic issue is the legality of the proposed construction and operation of the parking facilities. Will these facilities be considered to have a purpose essentially private in nature or is there a public

purpose sufficient to justify, constitutionally, the use of public funds for the construction and operation of the parking facilities?

POINT I

UTAH CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE VI, SECTION 28, PROHIBITING DELEGATIONS TO A SPECIAL COMMISSION OF THE POWER TO MAKE, SUPERVISE OR INTERFERE WITH A MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT OR TO PERFORM MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS IS VIOLATED BY THE UTAH NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT ACT AND BY THE CREATION AND OPERATION OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY.

Utah Constitution, Article VI, Section 28, (formerly Article VI, Section 29 prior to the revision of Article VI which was adopted at the general election in 1971) provides as follows:

The legislature shall not delegate to any special commission, private corporation or association, any power to make, supervise or interfere with any municipal improvement, money, property or effects, whether held in trust or otherwise, to levy taxes, to select a capitol site, or to perform any municipal functions.

In *Backman v. Salt Lake County*, 13 Utah 2d 412, 375 P.2d 756 (1962), the Utah Supreme Court stated that three conditions are necessary to violate this provision: (1) delegation to a private commission of power (2) to interfere with municipal property or (3) to perform a municipal function (375 P.2d at 760).

A. *The Redevelopment Agency is a Special Commission.* Although the Utah Neighborhood Development Act does not expressly declare redevelopment agencies created under it to be separate public corporations, the defendant Salt Lake City has treated the Redevelopment Agency here as such a separate entity. (R.97) The Agency employs its own officers and employees who are not subject to the rules applicable to city employees generally. (R. 173, 174) The Agency maintains separate offices, separate accounting records and a separate payroll. (R. 178) The funds of the Agency are not handled by city officers nor commingled with city funds, but are maintained in a separate bank account under the sole control of the Agency. The Agency operates under a separate budget with fiscal years entirely different than those of the City (see Exhibit 9), and from time to time the Agency has borrowed funds under its own name and under circumstances where any obligation against the City is directly negated. (R. 175, 177; see also Exhibits 15 and 16) The City has officially recognized the Agency's separate character and this is particularly evident in the resolution of October 14, 1971. (Exhibit 6) Although the members of the Redevelopment Agency are the same persons as the members of the Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake City, they act in different capacities. For example, the mayor of the City is not automatically the chairman of the Redevelopment Agency, but the Redevelopment Agency elects its own chairman and secretary. The former mayor, E. J. Garn, was merely a member of the Agency and Commissioner Conrad Harrison is the chairman of the Agency. (See generally R. 91, 174). Le-

gally, this should be held as more than a mere theoretical putting on of different hats, because members of the Redevelopment Agency acting in that capacity have primary fiduciary obligations owed to the Agency to perform their functions in the best possible way for the benefit of the Agency even in dealings between the Redevelopment Agency and the City. See the discussion in Antieau, *3a Municipal Corporation Law*, §30P-12. That there may be dealings between the City and the Redevelopment Agency is specifically indicated by Section 11-19-23.1 of the Act.

Finally, we point out that the Redevelopment Agency is, being subject to the Act, authorized to act solely for the limited purpose of redevelopment and only in the manner provided by the Act. Thus, it is not a city authorized to act for a great variety of municipal purposes, but can only act for the limited purpose for which it was created. Furthermore, the Utah Neighborhood Development Act seems to authorize the Agency to act initially on its own behalf without action by the City. For example, Section 11-10-13 of the Act permits the Agency to adopt a redevelopment plan but requires that after adoption of the plan it must be submitted to and approved by the legislative body of the City. Ordinarily, there would be no need for such approval if the Agency were considered a department or agency of the City, because in such case, approval by the Agency would be the equivalent of approval by the City.

For the foregoing reasons, we urge that the Redevelopment Agency is a special commission within the constitutional prohibition.

B. *There is a Legislative Delegation to the Redevelopment Agency.* It was successfully argued by the defendants that there is no legislative delegation in violation of Article VI, Section 28 even if the Redevelopment Agency is considered a special commission and even if it is authorized by the Utah Neighborhood Development Act to interfere with municipal improvements and with municipal functions. Defendants contended and the trial court held that any delegation involved was a delegation by the City itself when it created the Redevelopment Agency. The contention is that the City was authorized to make such a delegation pursuant to the Act if it chose to do so. (R. 94).

The Utah cases have not specifically addressed themselves to this question. The Utah cases seem to fall under two categories—first where a state agency was delegated authority by the legislature which resulted in an interference with municipal property or municipal functions. Examples are cases involving the Utah Public Service Commission, such as *City of St. George v. Public Utilities Commission*, 62 Utah 453, 220 Pac. 720 (1923); *Logan City v. Public Utilities Commission*, 72 Utah 536, 271 Pac. 961 (1928); *County Water System v. Salt Lake City*, 3 Utah 2d 46, 278 P.2d 285 (1954); *State Water Pollution Control Board v. Salt Lake City*, 6 Utah 2d 247, 311 P.2d 370 (1957); and *State Tax Commission v. City of Logan*, 88 Utah 406, 54 P.2d 1197 (1936).

A second class of cases has involved the legislative creation or authorization to create special districts or new types of political subdivisions operating within the geo-

graphic limit of existing cities or counties. Examples are *Backman v. Salt Lake County, supra*; where certain large counties were required to hold an election which if approved would result in the establishment of a city auditorium board whose members would be appointed not exclusively by the county, but also by state officers and cities located within the county; *Lehi City v. Meiling*, 87 Utah 237, 48 P.2d 530 (1935), approving an act authorizing metropolitan water districts created by one or more municipalities after an election by the qualified municipal electors approving their creation and governed by a board of directors appointed by the municipalities comprising the district; *Tygesen v. Magna Water Co.*, 119 Utah 274, 226 P.2d 127 (1950) approving an act authorizing the creation of water and sewer improvement districts within counties, such districts being initiated either by the county commission or by resident taxpayers of the proposed district and to be governed by a board of trustees elected from the district; *Carter v. Beaver County Service Area No. 1*, 16 Utah 2d 280, 399 P.2d 440 (1965), invalidating an act authorizing the creation of county service areas in unincorporated areas of a county created at the instance of either resident taxpayers or the county commission itself and to be governed by a board of trustees elected from the service area so created; and *Branch v. Salt Lake County Service Area No. 2*, 23 Utah 2d 181, 460 P.2d 814 (1969) holding constitutional on a limited basis an amended version of the county service area act.

In none of these cases did the court deal expressly with the question of whether the legislature could author-

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