2001

# Ira Royal L. Tribe, et al. v. Salt Lake City Corporation, et al : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY HELD THAT THE CREATION AND OPERATION OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY UNDER THE UTAH NEIGHBORHOOD DE-

VELOPMENT ACT DOES NOT VIOLATE ARTICLE VI, SECTION 28 OF THE UTAH CONSTITUTION WHICH PROHIBITS DELEGATION TO A SPECIAL COMMISSION OF THE POWER TO MAKE, SUPERVISE OR INTERFERE WITH A MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT OR TO PERFORM MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS.

The intended purpose of the Section 28 constitutional provision (commonly referred to as the "Ripper Clause") is to preclude the improper imposition of state legislative directives on municipalities. See Porter, "Ripper Clause in State Constitutional Law: An Early Urban Experiment," *Utah Law Review*, (Part I) April, 1969 page 287 and (Part II) June, 1969 page 450. These problems as well as the express constitutional prohibition are avoided by the proposed redevelopment plan.

A. *There is no Legislative Delegation to the Redevelopment Agency Because the Agency was Voluntarily Created by the City.*

The Redevelopment Agency was created by an ordinance adopted by the Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake City—not by a state legislative enactment. The Utah Neighborhood Development Act leaves the formation of a redevelopment agency and the implementation of any redevelopment plans entirely to the discretion of the legislative bodies of communities. By allow-



ing the cities to elect whether or not to take advantage of the state legislation allowing the creation of redevelopment agencies, the legislature has anticipated the local control of such agencies and it has avoided interference with the self-control by municipalities of municipal functions.

This principle was recognized by the Utah Supreme Court in a decision in which Justice Crockett, in speaking for a unanimous court, rejected the argument propounded on behalf of the State Water Pollution Control Board that its interference with municipal functions was analogous to that of a metropolitan water district. The court pointed out the "cases are clearly distinguishable in that the Metropolitan Water District was initiated by the cities desiring the district and there was no direct delegation by the legislature to a board or agency which would allow it to interfere with any municipal improvement, property, or function". *State Water Pollution Board v. Salt Lake City*, 6 Utah 2d 247, 311 P.2d 370, 376 (1957).

We acknowledge the consistency of this court in striking down legislation under which authority has been delegated to state agencies to perform or interfere directly with municipal functions. But local option legislation avoids this problem. In three of the five cases cited on page 14 of Appellants' brief, this court approved statutes allowing local electors to create public entities for the creation of a metropolitan water district, *Lehi City v. Meiling*, 87 Utah 237, 48 P.2d 530 (1935);

a sewer and water district *Tygesen v. Magna Water Co.*, 119 Utah 274, 226 P.2d 127 (1950); and a special service district for construction of a swimming pool, *Branch v. Salt Lake County Service Area No. 2*, 23 Utah 2d 181, 460 P.2d 814 (1969). The remaining cases are not in point because they were decided on grounds other than improper delegation. Dictum in *Backman v. Salt Lake County*, 13 Utah 2d 412, 375 P.2d 756 (1962) discusses the delegation issue and refers to what is now Article VI, Section 28 of the Constitution, but that case turned on the failure of Salt Lake County to initiate a bond election at the time and in the manner called for under the Act. In a subsequent case this court expressly refused to follow the dictum of the *Backman* case and the majority opinions limited the *Backman* holding to the bond election issue. *Branch v. Salt Lake County Service Area No. 2*, *supra*. The majority opinions in the *Branch* case also caution against an unduly broad interpretation of *Carter v. Beaver County Service Area No. 1*, 16 Utah 280, 399 P.2d 440 (1965), in which the objectionable features of the County Service Area Act were its vagueness and the attempted authorization of "an unlimited number of activities". Since the *Carter* and *Backman* cases were decided for reasons other than the local option issue, it was apparent to the trial court that the position of this court as stated in *State Water Pollution Board v. Salt Lake City*, *supra*, remains unchanged so that there is not an unconstitutional legislative delegation where enabling statutes cannot be implemented without affirmative action of local entities.

Well reasoned opinions from neighboring jurisdictions have also found lack of delegation where local option is granted. The California Supreme Court in *City of Whittier v. Dickson*, 24 Cal.2d 665, 151 P.2d 5 (1944) rejected a challenge that creation of a parking district pursuant to state statutory authorization violated a California constitutional provision prohibiting the delegation of any municipal function to a special commission. In so holding the court noted, "The parking place commissioners, however, are city officers appointed by the legislative body of the city when it elects to acquire parking places under the act, and are removable at the pleasure of that body. It is the local governing body and not the Legislature that confers upon the commission the right to exercise its functions." (151 P.2d at 7). In a similar case the Colorado Supreme Court found absence of imposition of legislative fiat upon the populace affected and compliance to the fullest extent with the principles of local self-government in the creation of a sanitation district by local electors pursuant to enabling legislation. *City of Aurora v. Aurora Sanitation District*, 122 Col. 407, 149 P.2d 662 (1944). See also *Housing Authority v. Dockweiler*, 14 Cal.2d 37, 94 P.2d 794 (1939).

Pennsylvania, which provided the constitutional model for Utah and other states by being the first to amend its constitution to include the so-called "Ripper Clause" has a constitutional provision substantially identical to Article VI, Section 28. In *Belovsky v. Redevelopment Authority*, 357 Pa. 329, 54 A.2d 277

(1947) the Pennsylvania Supreme Court approved an urban development authority because final decisions about the scope and substance of redevelopment projects were reserved to local elected officers. The earlier Pennsylvania case of *Lighton v. Abington Township*, 336 Pa. 345, 9 A.2d 609 (1939), can be distinguished from the *Belovsky* case because *Lighton* dealt with a delegation of municipal authority to a private corporation, an act which was repugnant to both state and municipal law. It is apparent that Pennsylvania is in accord with the California and Colorado Supreme Courts.

B. *There is no Unconstitutional Legislative Delegation Because Members of the Board of Commissioners of the City are the only Members of the Board of Commissioners of the Redevelopment Agency.*

The Utah Legislature also reserved to municipalities control over their redevelopment agencies by providing that if one were formed pursuant to the exercise of local option, the legislative body of the community would designate itself as the legislative body of the agency. It is obvious that there can be no delegation of municipal administrative authority by the legislature through the city to a redevelopment agency where both the agency and the city are managed by the same municipal legislative body. It is equally clear that the possible evils complained of in the *Backman* case, *supra*; i.e., legislative interference with municipal functions, diminution of local self-control and the imposition of an intermediate level of non-representative government, are entirely avoided where the Board of Commissioners of

the City also administers the Agency. If the practices and policies of the Board of Commissioners of the Redevelopment Agency are unsatisfactory to the city electorate, new commissioners will be elected to replace the incumbents.

C. *The Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City is Not A Special Commission, Private Corporation or Association Improperly Managing, Supervising or Interfering With Any Municipal Improvement or Performing any Municipal Functions Within the Meaning of Article VI, Section 28 of the Utah Constitution.*

Although the Redevelopment Agency is administered and managed by the legislative body of Salt Lake City, its operations are separate and distinguishable from those of the City. One of the Appellants' alternative arguments is that operational differences and separateness establish the Redevelopment Agency as a special commission. The existence of a legal entity separate from that of a municipality is not by itself determinative of the status of "special commission", nor is it illegal under the proper circumstances for that separate legal entity to perform certain functions which cities are empowered to perform. See for example, *Branch v. Salt Lake City Service Area No. 2, supra*, where this court approved the creation of a special service area for purposes including the construction of a swimming pool in an area where similar facilities were not available despite the inherent authority of the county to construct a swimming pool; *Barlow v. Clearfield City Corp.*, 1

Utah 2d 419, 268 P.2d 682 (1954) wherein a city was not prohibited from contracting with a separate entity, Weber Basin Water Conservancy District, for services which the city was empowered to perform itself; and *Lehi City v. Meiling, supra*, in which the validity of a separate water district was upheld even though the City of Lehi and other cities in the district had authority to establish, operate and maintain a water system. Clearly the holding of this court in the *Lehi City* case, *supra*, that a water district does not come within the constitutional designation "special commission, private corporation or association" (48 P.2d at 535), also applies to the Redevelopment Agency which is merely a "public agency or entity created for beneficial and necessary public purposes". (48 P.2d at 541). See also *Freeman v. Stewart*, 2 Utah 2d 319, 273 P.2d 174 (1954); and *Patterick v. Carbon Water Conservancy District*, 106 Utah 55, 145 P.2d 503 (1944).

It is acknowledged that the holdings of the above cited cases do not justify a position that *any* separate commission may be empowered to perform municipal functions. But in the case at bar there is a total absence of any objectionable impingement upon municipal control and functions. The Redevelopment Agency cannot impose or levy a tax nor can it interfere with the administration of the internal affairs of the City. The allocation of tax increment revenues does not affect the mill levy imposed by taxing units. The City maintains absolute control of the Agency through its Board of Commissioners and coordination of the separate func-

tions of the two entities can be maintained effectively. The City will continue to possess and exercise every municipal function it now has. The Utah Neighborhood Development Act contemplates cooperation between cities and their redevelopment agencies—not interference with municipal functions.

Appellants contend the interruption of street traffic flow which may be experienced during the construction phase of the proposed Redevelopment Agency plan constitutes interference with the municipal functions contemplated by Article VI, Section 28. The essential construction tasks incident to improving, refurbishing and constructing structures in urban areas whether publicly or privately owned will ordinarily cause temporary inconveniences such as detours for pedestrian and vehicular traffic. Such matters are inconsequential when compared with the interference which is prohibited by the constitution as a usurpation of the political power inherent in the electors residing in a municipality. This Court defined the nature and scope of prohibited state interference in the early case of *Logan City v. Public Utilities Commission*, 72 Utah 536, 271 P. 961 (1928) when it said in connection with what is now Article VI, Section 28 of the Utah Constitution, “We think it clear that the undoubted purpose of the constitutional provision is to hold inviolate the right of local self-government of cities and towns with respect to municipal improvements, money, property, effects, the levying of taxes, and the performance of municipal functions . . .” (271 P. at 972).

A final aspect of the delegation issue involves the so-called "state purpose doctrine". In cases involving direct state agency intervention with municipal activities the court has properly looked for a justifiable state interest requiring protection. For example, the attempted regulation of Salt Lake City sewage disposal facilities by the State Water Pollution Control Board would not have been an unlawful interference with a municipal function if there would have been a showing that the city was causing a menace to the health and safety of other state residents. *State Water Pollution Board v. Salt Lake City, supra*. Under this rationale it could be said the state agency must protect a state interest rather than merely perform a municipal function. Appellants argue for the extension of the requirement of state purpose into the local option area of municipal law relying on dictum in *Backman v. Salt Lake County, supra*, and the dissenting opinions in *Branch v. Salt Lake County Service Area No. 2, supra*. The incongruous result is that water, sewer and swimming pools involve overriding state purposes but civic centers and hospitals do not. *Branch v. Salt Lake County Service Area No. 2, supra*, (swimming pool); *Backman v. Salt Lake County, supra*, (civic center); and *Carter v. Beaver County Service Area No. 1, supra*, (hospital). We submit that the interpretation urged upon the court by Appellants is unnecessarily confusing. As was pointed out, both the *Backman* and *Carter* cases were decided on issues which are unrelated to the questions raised in this case. The court decided the *Branch* case by recognizing sig-



nificant public needs without specific reference in the majority opinions to state purposes. David O. Porter summarized and reconciled Utah and other “Ripper Clause” delegation cases without mention of the state purpose doctrine by emphasizing the following basic but not mutually exclusive principles, “(1) the legislature cannot delegate to an elected municipal body; (2) the legislature may not delegate the taxing power except to such an elective body on the ground that “taxation without representation is tyranny”; and (3) local governments are inherently better suited than the state legislature to determine the scope and depth of their activities and services”. (Porter, *supra*, at 481). Respondents respectfully submit that the proposed Redevelopment Agency project avoids the constitutional prohibitions enunciated by this court and summarized by Mr. Porter.

If the court elects to apply the state purpose test, it should find, as did the trial court, that the subject Redevelopment Agency plan has significant state-wide impact. “The public evils, social and economic, of conditions of slum areas in large cities are matters of state concern, since they vitally affect the health, safety, and welfare of the public . . .” 26 Am.Jur.2d Eminent Domain, § 42 (1966) and cases therein cited. The record abundantly supports a finding of state purposes. For example, sales tax revenues will be sharply increased, the state tourism industry will be expanded and the project will have a multiplier effect on the economy of the state. (R. 151-152). The problems relating to urban

blight which affect the entire state and nation are proper subjects for state legislative attention. “[S]ubstandard, decadent, or blighted areas . . . constitute a serious and growing menace injurious and inimical to the safety, health, morals, and welfare of the people throughout the United States.” Annot. 45 A.L.R. 3d 1096 at 1100 (1972). The proposed parking facility is an essential part of an integrated plan to rehabilitate some of the most blighted slum areas in the state. The court has not been called upon previously to determine whether the objectives of redevelopment involve significant state interest rather than purely local functions. Other states with constitutional provisions comparable to Utah’s Article VI, Section 28 have properly held that redevelopment activities are functions justifying state legislation. *In re Bunker Hill Renewal Project 1B*, 37 Cal. Rptr. 74, 389 P.2d 538 (1964); *Fellom v. Redevelopment Agency*, 157 Cal.App.2d 243, 320 P.2d 884 (1958); *Rabinoff v. District Court*, 360 P.2d 114 (Colo. 1961); *People v. Newton*, 101 P.2d 21 (Colo. 1940); *Romano v. Housing Authority of the City of Newark*, 123 N.J.L. 428, 10 A.2d 181 (1939), and the companion case of *Kantor v. City of Perth Amboy*, 123 N.J.L. 504, 10 A.2d 184 (1939). These cases are in point despite semantic differences in the constitutions of the respective states. We cannot agree with the assertion of Appellants that “in California the authority for redevelopment agencies to act is established by a state constitutional provision” (Appellants’ Brief p. 20). The section of the California Constitution cited by Appel-

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